
AGENDA 
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

10:00 a.m., Friday, March 14, 2025 
 

EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 & 460 

Topeka, KS 66603 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Minutes of February 14, 2025 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, an 
item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items for 
further discussion and consideration. 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  
a. GLI Approval Letters March 2025 
b. GLI Revocation Letters March 2025 
c. BMM Approval Letters March 2025 
d. BMM Revocation Letters March 2025 

2. Internal Control Amendment Approvals 
a. Boot Hill Casino and Resort Internal Control Amendment Approvals 
b. Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals 
c. Kansas Crossing Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

3. Occupational License Revocation  
a. KRGC Case No. 2024-2002  

 
E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
a. February Monthly Report 
b. February Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino  
a. February Monthly Report 
b. February Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 
a. February Monthly Report 
b. February Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  
a. February Monthly Report 
b. February Revenue Report 

5. Golden Circle 



 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

None 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

1. Sports Wagering Administrative Regulation Economic Impact Statement Public Hearing 
Commission Action  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation  Staff Attorney James Bain 
Staff Recommendation Approval of the proposed Economic Impact Statement 

a. Sports Wagering Administrative Regulation Economic Impact Statement  

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 
1. Garrett Rogers, Paralegal 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report 

2. Randy Evans, Government Relations Manager 

3. Don Brownlee, Executive Director 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open Meetings 
Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-4319. The 
Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s attorney on 
confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to protect the 
confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee background reports, and 
to protect the integrity of gaming information and the confidentiality of lottery gaming 
facility manager finances.  

The following items will be discussed during the first executive session:    
1. Background Reports 

The following items will be discussed during the second executive session: 
1. Attorney/Client Privilege  

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – FEBRUARY 14, 2025 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
(A.) 

 Chairman David Moses called the February 14, 2025, meeting to order at 10:00 
a.m. The meeting was held at the Eisenhower State Office Building in Topeka, 
Kansas. Notice of this meeting was given to the public via the KRGC and 
Public Square websites and the agency’s social media pages. Commissioners 
Brandon Jones, Larry Turnquist, and Mike Fleming were also present. Others 
present included Executive Director Don Brownlee, General Counsel Judith 
Taylor, Director of IT&C-s Dennis Bachman, Director of Security, Licensing, 
and Backgrounds Roger Bailey, Director of Gambling DJ Lopez, Director of 
Casino Operations Rick Wilson, Government Relations Manager Randy Evans, 
and other staff.  

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved to approve the agenda. Motion carried 
4-0. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE  
JANUARY 17, 2025 
MEETING MINUTES 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Fleming (Turnquist) moved to approve the minutes of the 
January 17, 2025 meeting. Motion carried 4-0.  

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA  
(D.) 

 Chairman Moses asked if the individual who is the subject for the 
administrative hearing was present. There was no response. Chairman Moses 
noted that if the individual were to appear before the meeting adjourned, he 
would entertain a motion to reconsider the commission’s decision.  
 
Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to approve the consent agenda (seven 
items). Motion carried 4-0.  

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
BOOT HILL CASINO & 
RESORT 
(E.1.a.) 

 Ryan Deutsch, General Manager, reported: 
• January 2025 revenue numbers compared to January 2024:  

o Total gaming revenue decreased 11.75% 
o Total slot revenue was down 11.04% 
o Table games revenue was down 17.31%  
o General Manager Deutsch explained that the decrease in revenue is 

due to two weekend snow storms had a material impact on 
visitation and that this was coupled with the lowest slot hold 
percentage in thirteen months.  

• January 2025 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $27,054.00 

 Down 49.65% from January 2024.  
 Handle was down 40% 
 Hold was down 15% 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $8,140,063.00 
 Up 49.86% from January 2024 
 Handle was up 14.5% 



 

2 
 

 Hold was up 18.5% 
o Super Bowl 

 The most bet proposition bet was Patrick Mahomes being over 
225 yards passing. 

 The most bet first touchdown score was for Kareem Hunt, 
which did not hit.  

 The most bet Super Bowl MVP was Patrick Mahomes, which 
did not hit.  

 The most bet proposition market was an anytime TD score.  
• Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Weekly Kiosk Games 
o Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
o $100,000 Big Draw 
o Valentine’s Day Specials 
o Toss to Win Hotseats 
o Marolyn Monroe Purse Set 
o VIP Promotions 
o Sportsbook Promotions 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events 
o Clint Black – February 8  
o Final Four Experience – February 17 – March 21 
o Treaty Oak Revival – March 1  
o Harlem Globetrotters – March 4 
o Blippi – April 5 
o Three Dog Night – April 12 
o Los Tigres del Norte – May 11 
o Larry the Cable Guy – June 28 
o Los Tucanes de Tijuana – August 20 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
HOLLYWOOD CASINO 
AT KANSAS 
SPEEDWAY  
(E.2.a.) 

 
 

Lydia Garvey, General Manager, reported:  
• January 2025 admissions were down 4.5% compared to January 2024 
• January 2025 revenue numbers compared to January 2024: 

o Total gross gaming revenue increased 8.6% 
o Slot revenue increased 10.7% 
o Table games revenue decreased 5.1% 

• January 2025 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $608,848.00  
 Up 1040% from January 2024’s loss of -$64,773.00. 
 Hold was 11.6% compared to negative hold last year. Hold was 

made up of 48% NFL, 16% NCAA, and 14% on the NBA.  
o Digital Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $597,190.00 
 Up 405.7% from January 2024. 
 Hold was 7.4% compared to negative hold last year. Hold was 

made up of 33% NFL, 20% NCAA, and 17% on the NBA. 
o Super Bowl 
 On digital sportsbook, $1.2M was wagered with a hold of 49.6%. 

The most popular bets were Chiefs moneyline and for Saquon 
Barkley to score a touchdown. 

 On the retail sportsbook, $2.4M was wagered with a hold of 
73.49%. Some interesting wagers were: $90 on Harrison 



 

3 
 

Butker to win Super Bowl MVP could have possible won 
$22,000, the largest single bet was $20,000 on the Chiefs 
moneyline, and the largest future bet was $72,000 on the 
Chiefs to win the Super Bowl.  

• Recent/Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o February 7 – Race to Daytona 500 
o February 9 - Big Game Watch & Win 
o February 9 – Big Game Giveaway 
o February 14 – Friends with Benefits 
o February 16 – Daytona 500 Even or Odd Drawing 
o February 21 – Cupid’s Kick Off 
o March 1 - $30K Lucky Clover Progressive Board 
o March 7 – Leprechaun’s Loot 

• On February 13th, the facility became aware of an issue with the natural 
gas supply to the boilers that heat the casino. The local utility company 
responded and recommended that the building be evacuated. General 
Manager Garvey expressed appreciation for the support and assistance 
given by KRGC Supervising Enforcement Agent Brett Jacobs and 
Agent Trent Allen in rapidly and safely evacuating all guests and team 
members. Repairs were made and the facility was able to re-open 
within three hours of discovering the issue. General Manager Garvey 
expressed thanks to NASCAR for providing a safe and warm place for 
team members to wait until the issue was resolved.  

    
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS CROSSING 
CASINO 
(E.3.a.) 

 Jeff McKain, General Manager, reported: 
• January 2025 admissions down 6.7% compared to January 2024 
• January 2025 revenue numbers compared to January 2024: 

o Coin in was up 4.5% 
o Table games was up 2.6% 
o Net gaming revenue was up 6.1% 

• January 2025 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $11,758.00  

 Up compared to January 2024’s loss of -$11,906 
 Retail wagers were $730,767 vs $814,416 in 2024. A decrease of 

10%. 
o Digital Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $2,712,545.00.  

 Up compared to January 2024’s revenue of $969,467.00 
 Digital wagers were up 57% coming in at $55,394,829.00 

o Top Sports by Handle 
 NFL was 42% of handle 
 College Basketball was 27% of handle 
 College Football was 18% of handle. 

o Top Sports by Hold 
 Hold for NFL was 42%  
 Hold for College Basketball was 31% 
 Hold for Men’s Australian Open was 27%  

o Super Bowl 



 

4 
 

 For the retail sportsbook, handle was slightly up.  
 Hold for the retail sportsbook came in at $84,000 compared to 

last year’s loss of -$63,000 and similar trends were seen in the 
digital sportsbooks.  

• Events and Promotions:  
o January 

 Kiosk games on Mondays and Tuesdays. 
 Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
 Pigskin Prizes promotion every Friday. 
 Casino gifts on Sundays. 

o February 
 Kiosk games on Mondays and Tuesdays. 
 Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
 Sweethearts of Cash promotion on Fridays. 
 Table Games Money Vault and Safecracker promotions on 

Saturdays 
 Casino gifts on Sundays. 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS STAR  
(E.4.a.)  

 Alli Kuplen, General Manager, reported: 
• January 2025 revenue numbers compared to January 2024: 

o Total gross gaming revenue was down 4.7% 
o Total slot revenue down 5.2% 
o Table games revenue down 2.3% 
o General Manager Kuplen noted that like Boot Hill, the facility was 

impacted by the snow storms.  
• January 2025 Sports Wagering revenue  

o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $114,000.00.  
 Flat compared to January 2024’s revenue of $113,000.00. 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $6,020,000.00 
 Up from January 2024’s revenue of $5,040,000.00. 

• January 2025 Sports Wagering 
o $87 million was wagered on FanDuel online. This was up $8 million 

from December. 
o The total handle in retail was $1.31 million for January. This was up 

$100k from December. 
o Football once again ruled the betting in retail as the NFL had 59% of 

the total handle followed by college football with 21%. They were 
followed by College Basketball at 11%, NBA at 5% NHL at 2% and 
MMA at 2%. 

o The largest payout in the month of January was $16,434. This was a 
$5,000 parlay with 7 legs. 

• Super Bowl 
o Retail sportsbook handle was $362,000, 89% of money wagered was 

on the Chiefs. For totals, 69% of money wagered was on the over, 
which hit.  

o Largest retail sportsbook wager was a $10,000 single-bet on the 
Eagles moneyline, which won and paid out $21,000. The FanDuel 



 

5 
 

General Manager reported that this year compared to previous years 
there were more bets on the opposing team.  

o Retail sportsbook handle was up $15,000 and revenue was up 
$330,000.  

o In the digital sportsbook $8.7M was wagered in Kansas on the Super 
Bowl.  

• Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o Double Down | Friday and Saturdays in February| 10am – 11:59pm 
o Jackpot Hotspot Progressive | Thursdays in February | 4pm - 8:00pm 
o Mouse Pad and Mouse Gift Giveaway | Friday, February 7 | 4pm-9pm 
o Wireless Earbuds Gift Giveaway | Friday, February 14 | 4pm-9pm 
o Bluetooth Speaker Gift Giveaway | Friday, February 21 | 4pm-9pm 
o Wireless Soundbar Gift Giveaway | Friday, February 28 | 4pm – 9pm 
o Hot Seats | Saturday, February 1 & 8 | 6pm-9pm 
o 50th Anniversary VIP Sealed Slot Tournament | Saturday, February 

15 | 5pm-8pm 
o VIP $11,000 Drawing | Saturday, February 22 | Host Event | 6pm-

7pm 
• Upcoming Entertainment & Events: 

o Battle of the Belt Wrestling | Arena | February 6-8 
o VIP Food Hall Event | Star Market Food Hall | Saturday, February 15 

| 6pm-8pm 
o Star Market Food Hall open to public | February 18  

• Chairman Moses noted that he had seen media coverage of the dining hall 
changes that seemed very positive, and it would be interesting to hear 
how the clientele will react. General Manager Kuplen shared that 
guests are very excited, and the dining hall will be open from 8am – 
4am.  

   
HISTORICAL HORSE 
RACING FACILITY 
LICENSEE 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
GOLDEN CIRCLE 
(E.5.a.)  

 Scott Beeler, Golden Circle Representative, reported:  
•   This last month, Wichita GC Charities had a board meeting at the site 

with KRGC staff attending. Board members were able to tour the 
facility and ask questions.  

• Construction continues, with no changes to the opening schedule.  
• KRGC staff provided a memorandum of understanding regarding the 

rules and regulations that the facility will be operating under. Facility 
staff are reviewing the document and anticipate providing their 
suggested comments and changes by February 28th.   

• Commissioner Turnquist asked who was on the board and how many 
members. Mr. Beeler responded that there are five board members, 
three men and two women.  

• Chairman Moses asked for clarification on the staff that the facility will 
be providing their suggestions to. Mr. Beeler clarified that it would be 
KRGC legal staff.  

• Chairman Moses shared that he appreciates Mr. Longwell reaching out to 
him prior to, or as a result of, one of the board meetings to ensure that 
the charity board was following all the necessary rules and regulations. 
Chairman Moses noted that he connected Mr. Longwell with Director 
of Gambling DJ Lopez, who subsequently attended the board’s 
meeting.  



 

6 
 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS – 
OLD BUSINESS (F.) 

 There was no old business. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS – 
NEW BUSINESS;  
(G.) 

 There was no new business. 

   
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(H.) 

 There were no public comments.  

   
STAFF REPORTS 
(I.1. and I.2.) 

 Garrett Rogers, Paralegal, reported on both the Voluntary Exclusion Program 
and Sports Wagering Exclusion Program statistics for the months of January 
2025. 
 
Government Relations Manager Randy Evans reported: 

•  SB43: Updates the Personal and Family Protection Act to prohibit the 
collection of personal information from off-duty law enforcement 
officers when they enter a building and will also prohibit venues from 
requiring off-duty officers to wear something that identifies them as a 
law enforcement officer. The legislation is currently in the Federal and 
State Affairs Committee and was introduced by the Attorney General’s 
office.  

o Chairman Moses asked if this pertains to specific venues or if 
this applies anywhere. Government Relations Manager Evans 
confirmed it could be anywhere. Chairman Moses followed-up 
asking if an off-duty officers who is in a grocery store would 
have to identify themselves. Government Relations Manager 
Evans confirmed that was accurate if they were asked to. 
Government Relations Manager Evans explained that the 
impetus for this legislation is that there are concert venues in 
Wichita and Kansas City that are requiring off-duty officer who 
are carrying a firearm to provide personal information and 
identify themselves. Chairman Moses asked if the primary goal 
of the requirement was to identify who was carrying a firearm. 
Government Relations Manager Evans stated that he did not 
know. Government Relations Manager Evans confirmed the 
bill was introduced by committee.  

o Commissioner Turnquist asked if off-duty law enforcement 
officers would still be required to provide ID or a badge. 
Government Relations Manager Evans confirmed that they 
would. Commissioner Turnquist asked who introduced the 
legislation.  



 

7 
 

• SB71: Will increase the criminal penalties for buying sexual relations to a 
level nine felony. Government Relations Manager Evans explained that 
he included this legislation in his report because it is not uncommon for 
this kind of activity to occur in and around casinos.  

• SB85: Has a mirrored bill in the house. The legislation requires the 
Department of Children and Families to monitor and provide data of 
households that win more than $3,000. So far, the legislation only 
regards the Kansas Lottery and the lottery gaming facilities, but it could 
be changed to affect the KRGC. Chairman Moses commented that he 
guesses the purpose of the legislation is to collect child support from 
funds that would be otherwise undisclosed. Government Relations 
Manager Evans noted that it is also for public assistance eligibility 
determinations. The bill was passed out of committee on the February 
13th.  

•  SB99: Requires the head of each agency to report if their agency has any 
FTE positions that have been vacant for 180 calendar days and to 
abolish those positions. Currently, the legislation only applies to 
General Fund agencies. KRGC is a fee funded agency.  

o Chairman Moses noted that he had read something about a state 
version of the Department of Government Efficiency (DOGE) 
and asked if this legislation was a part of that. Government 
Relations Manager Evans stated that it was not. Chairman 
Moses asked if the state version of DOGE is in the form of a 
bill. Government Relations Manager Evans explained that he 
was not sure if the state version of DOGE was in the form of a 
bill, he recalled reading it took the form of a resolution.  

• SB176/HB252: Amends the Kansas Indoor Clean Air Act. The bill has 
not had a hearing. Chairman Moses asked if this was the legislation that 
was recently in the media and was introduced by the committees. 
Government Relations Manager Evans confirmed that was accurate and 
that legislators added electronic cigarettes and marijuana to the 
legislation.  

• SB256: Regards remote state employees. The bill has not had a hearing.  
• SB260: Amends the Kansas Parimutuel Racing Act. Director of 

Gambling DJ Lopez and Government Relations Manager Evans met 
with Senator Blasi and Steve Eck a couple weeks to discuss this. One 
of the many things it does, is take language out of the proviso and 
attempts to make it in statute. There is a hearing scheduled for February 
17th at 10:30am.  

o Chairman Moses asked what the substantive changes are. 
Government Relations Manager Evans explained that the bill 
changes definitions, live racing at Eureka downs, allocation of 
funds and taxation focusing on the double-tax issue of the HHR 
facility. Director of Administration, Finance, and Audit Brandi 



 

8 
 

White submitted a form noting that the legislation does not 
substantially impact the KRGC budget. Chairman Moses asked 
if, other than the tax issue, the legislation have anything else to 
do with the HHR facility. Government Relations Manager 
Evans stated that he did not believe so.  

o Commissioner Turnquist asked if staff have reviewed this 
legislation since it deals with parimutuel wagering to determine 
if there are any other items that could be advantageous to try 
and include. Government Relations Manager Evans said that he 
did not believe so.  

• HB2084: Would allow for gambling losses to be written off for state 
income taxes, like you can for federal taxes.  

o Chairman Moses asked if this was the same legislation that 
would stop taxing Social Security Income at the state level. 
Government Relations Manager Evans confirmed that was a 
separate bill. 

• Commissioner Turnquist asked if the legislation regarding online sports 
wagering advertisements had come back this session. Government 
Relations Manager Evans confirmed it has not been introduced.  

• Chairman Moses asked if there has been any attempt to work on the 
forfeiture statutes that were passed in the previous session. Government 
Relations Manager Evans said they has not.  

• Commissioner Fleming asked for an overview of the remainder of 
session. Government Relations Manager Evans confirmed that the 
legislature is planning to adjourn quickly this session and that they have 
spent much of their time on the new budget plan. Next week is 
turnaround. That week, or the following, Mr. Evans anticipates the 
Kansas Clean Indoor Air Act legislation will have a hearing.  

• Chairman Moses asked if KRGC has introduced any independent bills 
that have been discussed in the past few months. Government Relations 
Manager Evans confirmed they have not.  

 
Executive Director Brownlee reported:  

•  KRGC Supervising Enforcement Agent Harry Spencer at the Kansas 
Star Casino has resigned affective at the end of this month. He is 
moving to Oklahoma to get married and will work down there instead. 
Agent Spencer has been with the agency since the facility opened in 
Mulvane.  

• Next month, Director of Gambling DJ Lopez is going to be a guest 
speaker at a gaming law conference at Seton Hall University Law 
School. We are proud and honored to have DJ’s expertise recognized 
at such a prestigious conference event.  

• At the December meeting Diane Giardine told the commission about a 
lifesaving effort that occurred at Boot Hill Casino where two KRGC 



 

9 
 

agents and two security staff from the casino provided medical 
attention to a patron who had suffered a heart attack. The two agents, 
Eric Lalicker and Michael Robbins, and the two Boot Hill employees, 
Zam Marvilla and John Montoya, will be recognized and presented 
with a lifesaving award in the near future.  

• The illegal gambling investigation team assisted the Wichita Police 
Department with seizure of illegal gaming devices at three different 
locations in Wichita. They seized a total of 69 illegal electronic 
gambling machines. Chairman Moses asked if Executive Director 
Brownlee could report the locations. Executive Director Brownlee 
explained that he did not have the names of the locations but could tell 
the commission that one was a mini-casino in a strip mall, another was 
a mini-casino that was using a burger and wing joint as a front, and 
another was actually a tire shop that had a game room in the back. 
Wichita PD has been very aggressive on illegal gambling.  

• The next commission meeting is scheduled for March 14 here in Topeka. 
Staff are also looking at having the travelling meeting this year in 
Dodge City. Executive Director Brownlee asked if the commissioners 
have a preference on the month or time of the travelling meeting. 
Chairman Moses asked that staff work with General Manager Deutsch 
to determine the best time to have the travelling. Commissioner Jones 
noted that May would be problematic for him.  

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION; 
CONFIDENTIAL 
BACKGROUND 
REPORTS 
(J.1.) 
 
 

 Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved that the Commission go into executive 
session for the purpose of reviewing confidential background reports presented 
today by the commission’s security division. In addition to the commissioners, 
the confidential background reports portion included the executive director, 
general counsel, and director of security, licensing, and backgrounds. The total 
time for the executive session was anticipated to be twenty (20) minutes until 
11:05 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 
discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full record of this motion 
is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and 
Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting is 
to be continued in open session. The motion carried 4-0, and the meeting was 
adjourned to executive session at 10:45 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(J.2.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:05 a.m. with Chairman 
Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and Commissioner 
Fleming present.  

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION; ATTORNEY-
CLIENT PRIVILEGE 
(K.1) 

 Commissioner Fleming (Turnquist) moved that the Commission go into 
executive session for the purpose of consulting with the agency’s attorney on 
attorney-client privileged communications. In addition to the commissioners, 
the attorney-client privileged communications will include the executive 



 

10 
 

 
 

director, general counsel. After discussion, the total time for the executive 
session was anticipated to be twenty (20) minutes until 11:26 a.m. No action is 
to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited as 
previously described. A full record of this motion is to be maintained as part of 
the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the 
conclusion of the executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open 
session. The motion carried 4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive 
session at 11:06 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(K.2.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:26 a.m. with Chairman 
Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and Commissioner 
Fleming present.  
 

   
MOTIONS ON LICENSE 
APPLICATIONS 
(L.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to deny four license applications and 
approve the remaining 171 license applications from the February 14, 2025, list 
of background reports referred to the commission for action. The motion 
carried 4-0. 

   
OTHER BUSINESS 
(M.) 

 General Counsel Judith Taylor noted for the record that the individual who was 
the subject of the administrative hearing never made an appearance. Chairman 
Moses agreed that the person did not appear and so the action taken during the 
consent agenda will be upheld.  
 
There were no other items for discussion or motion.    

   
ADJOURNMENT 
(N.) 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 

______________________  
Larry Turnquist 
Secretary 

APPROVED BY: 
 
______________________ 
David Moses 
Chairman 

 

 Chairman Moses stated that the March 14, 2025, commission meeting will 
begin at 10:00 a.m. for an in-person meeting at the Eisenhower State Office 
Building in Topeka, Kansas.  
 
Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion passed 
4-0. The meeting was adjourned at 11:28 a.m. 



GLI Approved                 PENDING COMMISSION APPROVAL MARCH 14, 2025

Manufacturer File Number ID Number Game Name Version
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-25-15 Rakin’ Bacon Triple Oink San Shen Zhu (9743) R243454 Rakin’ Bacon! Triple Oink San Shen Zhu V0131251448
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-25-15 PT3290 Rakin’ Bacon! Triple Oink San Shen Zhu N/A
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-25-16 Rakin’ Bacon Triple Oink Soda Fountain Fortunes (9703) R243452 Rakin’ Bacon! Triple Oink Soda Fountain Fortunes V0131251523
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-25-16 PT3290 Rakin’ Bacon! Triple Oink Soda Fountain Fortunes N/A
Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-24-41 25231 Light Tower LED 4" 2 Tier Rev A
Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-24-41 25232 Light Tower LED 6" 2 Tier Rev A
Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-24-41 25233 Light Tower LED 6" 3 Tier Rev A
Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-25-03 GDIN8H1G.raw Rocket Frenzy - Diner 1G
Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-25-04 GDIN8J1D.raw Rocket Frenzy - Drive - In 1D
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-50-ARI-25-01 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.4.iso Monaco Platform 2.7.2.4
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-50-ARI-25-01 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.4.manifest Monaco Platform 2.7.2.4
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-119 1.02-69072 Tarzan Linkcash Tarzan Palace of Diamonds 1.02
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-120 1.02-69071 Tarzan LinkCash Tarzan City of Gold 1.02
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-96 1.03-68645 Bank Buster 1.03
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-25-07 1.01-70324 Eternal Legends 4UP 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-25-08 ATI_Runtime_3.5.0.6.iso Monaco Runtime 3.5.0.6
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-25-08 ATI_Runtime_3.5.0.6.manifest Monaco Runtime 3.5.0.6
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 146000 Crown Bartop Cabinet 146000
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 494362-06-1 Config Stick 494362-06-1
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 439107-1 P1000 GR Card Plus Low 439107-1
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 434949 Graphic Card K1200 NVIDIA 434949
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 598406-02 BIOS 6.11.0
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 598409-01 FPGA 1.2
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 598417-04 UBC P6.4
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-24-02 598417 UBC P6.1
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-25-01 161001 Baron Portrait L4 Assembly 161001
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-25-01 161070 43 Inch Baron Portrait Monitor Assembly 161070
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-25-01 161249 Baron Portrait Topper Assembly 161249
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. PA-73-ARI-25-01 433667 PSU 540W SETEC Gold RoHS 433667
BetMGM, LLC                                                 02/25/2025 SY-646-ROD-25-01 PAM
Everi Games, Inc. MO-214-MMG-23-06 9529 MF_HighVoltageLinkSnowTiger 2.0.0-15
Everi Games, Inc. MO-214-MMG-23-07 9535 MF_HighVoltageLinkMayanFortune 2.0.0-14
Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-24-36 11000 MF_SmokinHotStuffLinkFiredUpFatStacks 2.1.0-1
Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-24-37 11001 MF_SmokinHotStuffLinkFiredUpFortunes 2.2.0-1
Everi Games, Inc. MO-294-MMG-24-01 10806 MF_BigDollarGreenTriplePot 2.0.1-0
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-20-09 8348 MFm_BlazinTripleWheel 2.0.0-7
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-22-66 9368 MFm_WildStacksDeluxeRubyFire 2.0.0-11
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-23-31 9582 HighVoltageLink_Flex-1.0.5-1344.plugin 1.0.5-1344
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-23-31 6e8e28ef-4e64-4c22-92bd-6b111e74e741 HighVoltageLink_Flex 1
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-24-27 10087 SmokinHotStuffLink_FlexSol_Plugin-1.0.1-1472.plugin 1.0.1-1472
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-24-27 ef82626d-0cc6-4efa-b33c-b5b2b9fb6f6f SmokinHotStuffLink_FlexSol_Plugin 1
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-24-59 10515 MF_DynamitePopBlueBlast 2.0.0-2
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-24-60 10516 MF_DynamitePopRedRush 2.0.0-1
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-24-83 10805 MF_BigDollarGoldTriplePot 2.0.1-0
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-25-02 10560 MF_PearlDynastyDragon 2.0.0-5
Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-25-04 10559 MF_PearlDynastyTiger 2.0.0-5
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 NitroSystem_Primary-5.2.2-1143.exe Nitro 5.2.2 5.2.2-1143
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Access_Management_Service Nitro Access Management Service 5.2.2-1158
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Bank_Configuration_Content_Controller Nitro Bank Configuration Content Controller 5.2.2-1254
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Big_Win_Service Nitro Big Win Service 5.2.2-1122
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Casino_Management_G2S_Module Nitro Casino Management G2S Module 5.2.2-1254
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Casino_Management_Service Nitro Casino Management Service 5.2.2-1254
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Consolidated_Content_Controller Nitro Consolidated Content Controller 5.2.2-1444
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Content_Management_Service Nitro Content Management Service 5.2.2-1444
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Download_G2S_Module Nitro Download G2S Module 5.2.2-1209
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Download_Service Nitro Download Service 5.2.2-1209
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_DRS_Service Nitro DRS Service 5.2.2-792
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Enhanced_Media_Content_Controller Nitro Enhanced Media Content Controller 5.2.2-1418
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Ensemble_G2S_Module Nitro Ensemble G2S Module 5.2.2-825



Manufacturer File Number ID Number Game Name Version
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_G2S_Router_Service Nitro G2S Router Service 5.2.2-1129
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_ISP_Service Nitro ISP Service 5.2.2-879
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Media_Management_Service Nitro Media Management Service 5.2.2-1418
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Mosaic_Content_Controller Nitro Mosaic Content Controller 5.2.2-1418
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Plugin_Content_Controller Nitro Plugin Content Controller 5.2.2-1006
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Plugin_Service Nitro Plugin Service 5.2.2-1006
Everi Games, Inc. SY-22-MMG-24-01 Nitro_Tournevent_Service Nitro Tournevent Service 5.2.2-1453
Everi Games, Inc. SY-73-MMG-24-02 InfrastructureManagementDB-1.2.4-138.msi Everi Server Suite 1.2.0 1.2.4-138
Everi Games, Inc. SY-73-MMG-24-02 SQLExpressAgentService-1.1.1-70.msi Everi Server Suite 1.2.0 1.1.1-70
Everi Games, Inc. SY-73-MMG-24-02 SystemManagementServiceInstaller-5.2.1-613.msi Everi Server Suite 1.2.0 5.2.1-613
Everi Games, Inc. SY-73-MMG-24-02 Everi_SQL_Express_Agent_Service Everi SQL Express Agent Service 1.1.1-70
Everi Games, Inc. SY-73-MMG-24-02 Everi_System_Management_Service Everi System Management Service 5.2.1-613
FanDuel                                                             02/19/2025 SY-559-FAN-25-03 Sportsbook
FanDuel                                                            02/17/2025 SY-580-FAN-25-02 PAM
FanDuel                                                            02/11/2025 SY-559-FAN-25-02 Sportsbook
FanDuel                                                           03/04/2025 SY-580-FAN-25-03 PAM
FanDuel                                                           03/04/2025 SY-559-FAN-25-04 Sportsbook
Galaxy Gaming, Inc. LO-00-GGM-24-04 Table Game Analysis 21+3 Progressive N/A
IGT MO-394-IGT-24-18 699826xx 32.3" Kortek LCD Monitor Assembly N/A
IGT MO-52-IGT-24-01 GAME02000CWCDP01 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Reels Double Diamond ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-52-IGT-24-01 GI02000CWCDP001 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Reels Double Diamond ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-52-IGT-24-02 GAME02000CWCGP01 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Reels Double Gold ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-52-IGT-24-02 GI02000CWCGP001 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Reels Double Gold ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-103 GAME02000CWRWP01 Wheel of Fortune Red White & Blue ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-103 GI02000CWRWP001 Wheel of Fortune Red White & Blue ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-103 UCGS413A1 Wheel of Fortune Red White & Blue Sign Controller N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-110 AWDF0001 WOF DRS ARM WHEEL DRIVER FIRMWARE N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-92 GAME020001MRPU01 Miner's Dream Red Mountain ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-92 GI020001MRPU001 Miner's Dream Red Mountain ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-98 UCGS418A1 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Reels Sign Controller N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-25-04 UBPF0347 Peak49 Poker Button Panel N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-25-05 ASGB020WPRX001 Wheel of Fortune Poker N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-25-05 AB020WPRX001 Wheel of Fortune Poker N/A
IGT                                                                     02/05/2025 SY-582-IGT-24-06 Evenue
IGT                                                                       02/11/2025 SY-582-IGT-25-03 Kiosk Image
INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-23-13 G00751 Lotus Link Spirit of Prosperity 01.02.97
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-22-ELE-24-02 2016-1485c Dice Detection Module HW v4.2, FW v8.3
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-22-ELE-25-01 2021-1389 Backplane HW v4.0
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-25-01 Param_hardcode.ini Param_hardcode.ini Kansas (6.02)
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-25-01 Center_hardcode.ini Center_hardcode.ini Kansas (6.01)
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-25-01 HardwareAllowed.dat HardwareAllowed.dat Kansas (6.02) 5.123.8.8-51.41
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-25-01 HardwareAllowedC.dat HardwareAllowedC.dat Kansas (6.01) 5.123.8.8-51.41
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-18 Center.exe Center.exe 5.123.8.8
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-18 Help Files Help Files 5.123.8.8
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-18 MultiGameGUI.exe MultiGameGUI.exe 5.123.8.8
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-20 PCMDAX 16GB CFA PCMDAX 16GB CFA 5.123.8.8-51.41
KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-24-97 KGI_MA12DDL031WD00 Mighty Mayan Chief Lush Jungle GAME PROGRAM
KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-25-04 KGI_M754DDG032WD09 Roman Tribune GAME PROGRAM
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-24-108 AAE1-000-1000 Super Hot Flaming Pots Mrs Wong 1000
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-22-SHU-24-05 OTS_Plus_CardRec_5.0.012_setup.enc1 OTS Plus Flat 5.0.012
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-22-SHU-24-05 OTS_Plus_CardRec_5.0.012.bin OTS Plus Flat 5.0.012
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-22-SHU-24-05 OTS_Plus_UI_2.0.042_setup.enc1 OTS Plus Flat 2.0.042
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-22-SHU-24-05 OTS_Plus_UI_2.0.042.bin OTS Plus Flat 2.0.042
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_Games_1.0.212_setup.enc1 Deck Mate 2 1.0.212
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_Games_1.0.212.xml Deck Mate 2 1.0.212
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_NXP_2.0.004_setup.enc1 Deck Mate 2 2.0.004
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_NXP_2.0.004.bin Deck Mate 2 2.0.004
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_UI_3.1.022_setup.enc1 Deck Mate 2 3.1.022
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_UI_3.1.022.bin Deck Mate 2 3.1.022
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_CardRec_5.2.002_setup.enc1 Deck Mate 2 5.2.002
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-25-01 Deck_Mate_2_CardRec_5.2.002.bin Deck Mate 2 5.2.002



Manufacturer File Number ID Number Game Name Version
Novomatic AG - APEX MO-214-NPX-25-01 6NY570008411.bin 6NY570008411.bin V4.11
Novomatic AG - APEX MO-214-NPX-25-01 UBA-500_SS_23206_ID003_USA.bin UBA-500_SS_23206_ID003_USA.bin V2.32-06
Novomatic AG - APEX PA-214-NPX-25-01 APSL55J APSL55J &nbsp;
Novomatic AG - APEX PA-214-NPX-25-02 ASUP49J ASUP49J &nbsp;
Novomatic AG - APEX PA-214-NPX-25-03 ASUP43J ASUP43J &nbsp;
NRT TECHNOLOGY CORP. SY-22-NTC-24-06 CHS.1.4.0.0-Patch_Bug_CUTEETPC2-12.exe Kiosk Software 12.13.24

* Executive Approval



GLI Revoked                           PENDING COMMISSION APPROVAL March 15, 2025

Revoked Manufacturer Revoked File Number Revoked ID Number Revoked Game Name New File Number New ID Number Replace By
Ainsworth Game Technology, Inc MO-22-AWG-24-42 GDIN8H1F.raw Rocket Frenzy - Diner MO-22-AWG-25-03 GDIN8H1G.raw 05/13/2025
Ainsworth Game Technology, Inc MO-22-AWG-25-01 GDIN8J1C.raw Rocket Frenzy - Drive - In MO-22-AWG-25-04 GDIN8J1D.raw 05/13/2025
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc MO-73-ARI-24-100 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.3.iso Monaco Platform MO-50-ARI-25-01 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.4.iso 04/13/2025
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc MO-73-ARI-24-100 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.3.manifest. Monaco Platform MO-50-ARI-25-01 ATI_Platform_2.7.2.4.manifest 04/13/2025
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc MO-73-ARI-24-25 1.02-68645 (1.02). Bank Buster MO-73-ARI-24-96 1.03-68645 (1.03) 06/12/2025
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc MO-73-ARI-24-55 1.01-69071 (1.01) Tarzan LinkCash Tarzan City of Gold MO-73-ARI-24-120 1.02-69071 (1.02) 06/12/2025
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc MO-73-ARI-24-56 1.01-69072 (1.01) Tarzan Linkcash Tarzan Palace of Diamonds MO-73-ARI-24-119 1.02-69072 (1.02) 06/12/2025



l

BMM Approved          PENDING COMMISSION  APPROVAL            March 14, 2025

Manufacturer Report Number Game Name
Konami Gaming Inc. Jin Bi Hui Huang Moo Moo Multiplier KGI14981KS
Incredible Technologies Coin Catch Cove - G00798 ITECH11351KS
Galaxy Gaming, Inc. Bet Sensor with Controller GAG10281KS
Acres Manufacturing Company Acres Table Controller v2.0 Hardware ACR10501KS
IGT PINBALL GRAND TRIPLE DIAMOND 3R1L DRS (GPS) IGTU34761KS



BMM Revoked PENDING COMMISSION APPROVAL March 14, 2025

Revoked 
Manufacturer

Revoked File 
Number Revoked ID Number

Revoked Game 
Name

New File 
Number New ID Number Replace By

IGT IGTU33551KS GAME020009MCAS01 Money Gong Emperor IGTU35771KS GAME020009MCAS02 04/13/2025
IGT IGTU33551KS GI020009MCAS001 Money Gong Emperor IGTU35771KS GI020009MCAS002 04/13/2025



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

March 14, 2025 
 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

BH638 – Crazy 4 Poker No 

 
KAR 112-108-6, 112-108-2 / Carnival 

Games Crazy 4 Poker 210.002, 210.090 
 

Approval 

BH642 - TriLux No KAR 112-108-6(a)/ Twenty-One 
(21)/Blackjack TriLux 250.030 Approval 

BH632- Security Org 
Chart No 

 
KAR 112-104-34-38, 112-111-3, 112-112-3/ 

Various IC: 140.010,140.020, 140.030, 
140.060,180.010, 700.010.00-.02, 

700.040.00-.03, 700.040.06, 810.010 
 
 

Approval 

BH639 – Player 
Membership No KAR 112-112-8/Player Cards,  

Points & Free Play 260.020 Approval 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

March 14, 2025 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

HW198 – Poker Bad Beat 
Jackpot Distribution No KAR 112-108-45 / Chapter D: Poker Approval 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 

Kansas Crossing Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

March 14, 2025 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

KC 111- 18+ employees 
and removal of secondary 

job descriptions 
No 

 
KAR 112-104-2; KCC 111, KCC 2000, KCC 

3000 
 

Approval 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 14, 2025 

 
By: Ryan Deutsch  

 
For the month of February 2025, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 5.89% over 
February 2024.  Total Slot Revenue was down 7.91% and Table Games Revenue was up 14.39%.   

 
For the month of February 2025, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 
$15,008. This is up 131.14% from February 2024.  Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas 
Lottery was $10,743,011. This is up 485.60% compared to February 2024.   

 
 
 
 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 
 
• Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
• $100,000 Big Draw 
• Wild Wins Free Play Bonus 
• Hosted Player Offers 
• VIP Promotions 
• Sportsbook Promotions 
 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  
 

• Treaty Oak Revival – March 1 
• Harlem Globetrotters – March 4 
• SW Storm Arena Football – March – June  
• KSHSAA State Basketball – March 12-15 
• Blippi – April 5 
• Three Dog Night – April 12 
• Los Tigres del Norte – May 11 
• Larry the Cable Guy – June 28 
• Los Tucanes de Tijuana – June 29 

 
 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines        3,263,812.98   3,542,285.09      27,191,321.63   27,733,394.67 
         

Table games           404,192.50   355,132.51        3,140,295.00   3,450,068.88 
         

Other #                   145.51   228.75                6,019.77   4,395.28 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,668,150.99       3,897,646.35       30,337,636.40   

    
31,187,858.83  

         

State Share 22%  **                            -            857,482.20         4,676,813.25   
      

6,861,328.94  
         

State Share 24**           880,356.24                           -           2,179,054.64                             -    
         

Local Share 3%           110,044.53          116,929.39            910,129.09   
         

935,635.76  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%              73,363.02            77,952.93            606,752.73   
         

623,757.18  
         

Casino Share 73% **                            -         2,845,281.84       15,518,516.72   
    

22,767,136.95  
         

Casino Share 71%**        2,604,387.20                           -           6,446,369.97                             -    
   

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         

**Dec 15th, 2024, state share percentage increased to 24% from 22%; Casino Share percentage decreased to 71% 
from 73% 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



KANSAS STAR CASINO 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 14, 2025 

By: Alli Kuplen 
 

For the month of February 2025 KSC experienced a 1.1% decrease in Total Gross Gaming Revenue compared 
to February 2024. Total Slot Revenue was down 0.4% and Table Games Revenue was down 22.4%. 
 
For the month of February 2025, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery is 
$258K which is up to February 2024’s loss of $87K. Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the 
Kansas Lottery is $8.3M. This is up from February 2024’s revenue of $1.3M. 
 

 
Upcoming Promotions & Events 
 

• Double Down | Friday and Saturdays in March | 10am -11:59pm  
• Golden Anniversary Hot Seats | Thursdays in March | 6pm - 9pm 
• Storage Organizer Gift Giveaway | Friday, March 7 | 4pm - 9pm 
• Sharper Image Spin Mop Gift Giveaway | Friday, March 14 | 4pm - 9pm 
• 7-Tier Shoe Rack Gift Giveaway | Friday, March 21 | 4pm - 9pm 
• Spin Brush Cleaning Tool Gift Giveaway | Friday, March 28 | 4pm - 9pm 
• VIP 50th Anniversary Jacket Giveaway | Saturday, March 8 | 7pm - 9pm 
• VIP Golden Anniversary Progressive | Saturday, March 15 & 22 | 5pm - 10pm 
• Cruise with the GM | Saturday, March 15 - 23  
• VIP Shoe La La | Saturday, March 29 | Host Event | 4pm - 7pm 
• Receive a commemorative 50th Anniversary Pilsner glass in Tin Lizard | Thursday, March 27 

 
Upcoming Entertainment & Events 

• USA Wrestling | Arena | March 8 
• Top Dance | Arena | March 27 - 30  
• Fortune Feimster “Takin Care of Biscuit” Tour | Arena | June 8 
• 98 Degrees | Arena | October 18 

 
February FanDuel Sportsbook Notes 
 

• $64 million was wagered on FanDuel online.   
• The total handle in retail was $906k million for February.   
• The majority of our overall handle in retail was wagered on the Super Bowl.  The Super Bowl 

accounted for 83% of our overall handle in February.  That was followed by College Basketball at 
11%, NBA at 3% MMA at 2% and NHL at 1%. 

• The largest wager placed at retail were 2 separate $10,000 wagers.  One of these was a straight 
wager on the KC Chiefs ML to win the Super Bowl.  The other was a straight wager on Patrick 
Mahomes to win the Super Bowl MVP.  They were both losers. 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         

  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2025  2024  2025  2024 

         
Electronic gaming machines       10,870,154.63   11,541,886.80       88,226,484.67   88,162,727.01 

         
Table games         1,543,747.50   2,254,268.50       16,532,633.75   15,740,634.65 

         
Other #                    137.00   93.01               18,967.05   16,992.19 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue      12,414,039.13      13,796,248.31      104,778,085.47      103,920,353.85  

         
State Share 22% (Tier 1)**         2,731,088.61        3,035,174.63        23,051,178.80        22,862,477.85  

         
State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**                            -                              -                                -                                -    

         
Local Share 3%            372,421.17           413,887.45          3,143,342.56          3,117,610.62  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%            248,280.78           275,924.97          2,095,561.71          2,078,407.08  

         
Casino Share  73%         9,062,248.56      10,071,261.27        76,488,002.39        75,861,858.31  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

 



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 14, 2025 

 
BY: LYDIA GARVEY - GENERAL MANAGER 

 
February 2025 

 
February Admissions 

• February 2025 admissions were down 4.3% compared to last year. 

February 2025 Revenue Numbers 

• Total Gaming Revenue came in at $13.2M – a decrease of 1.4%  

• Slot Revenue was $11.9M – an increase of 1.3% 

• Table Games Revenue (including Poker) was $1.3M – a decrease of 20.6% 

• Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was $2,101,588 in February 2025 which was an increase of 

234% (lost $1.57M in 2024). 

• Platform Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was $1,102,582 in February 2025 which was an increase 

of 387% (lost $384K in 2024). 

Recent/Upcoming Events 

• March 1 - $30K Lucky Clover Progressive Board 

• March 7 – Leprechaun’s Loot 

• March 13 – PENN Millionaire VIP 

• March 19 – March Madness 

• April 4 – Power Punch Board Payout 

• April 5 - $20,000 Lucky Bunny Board 

• April 12 – VIP Gift Giveaway 

 

 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
   

11,915,355.02   11,764,158.17  
     

98,088,148.29   92,762,408.01 
         

Table games  
     

1,295,088.00   1,630,821.01  
     

11,660,898.37   12,324,038.88 
         

Other #  
                

221.16   0.00  
               

9,590.34   9,734.78 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

   
13,210,664.18   

   
13,394,979.18   

   
109,758,637.00   

   
105,096,181.67  

         

State Share 22%  
     

2,906,346.12   
     

2,946,895.42   
     

24,146,900.14   
     

23,121,159.97  
         

Local Share 3%  
        

396,319.93   
        

401,849.38   
       

3,292,759.11   
       

3,152,885.45  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
        

264,213.28   
        

267,899.58   
       

2,195,172.74   
       

2,101,923.63  
         

Casino Share 73%  
     

9,643,784.85   
     

9,778,334.80   
     

80,123,805.01   
     

76,720,212.62  
         

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.   

 



 

 
KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

March 14, 2025 
By: Jeff McKain 

 
Kansas Crossing Casino is reporting the following preliminary results for February 2025 vs February 2024. 
   

•       -9.8% Decrease in Admissions 
•       -6.7% Decrease in Coin-In 
•        -26% Decrease in Table Drop  
•        4.3% Increase in Net Gaming Revenue 

 
Sports Wagering:  
For the month of February 2025, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery reported 
$13,496 vs -$27,154 prior year. Retail wagers were $974,818 vs $937,403 in 2024. An increase of 4%. Digital 
Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery in February was $4,095,091 vs prior year of -$882,806. 
Digital wagers were up 36% coming in at $45,603,207.     
 
Promotions + Events  
  

 
February 

o Kiosk games on Mondays and Tuesdays.   
o Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
o Sweethearts of Cash promotion on Fridays. 
o Table Games Money Vault and Safecracker promotions on Saturdays.  
o Casino gifts on Sundays. 

March 
o Kiosk games on Tuesdays.   
o Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
o Golden Ticket Treasure Hunt promotion every Friday.  
o Ford Bronco give-a-way promotion on Saturdays.  
o Casino gifts on Sundays. 
o Corral concerts include A Tribute to John Denver (8th) and 90’s Fool House (29th).  

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines        3,075,920.46   3,044,487.87      24,105,302.92   23,026,771.57 
         

Table games           271,861.00   165,219.00        2,060,148.00   2,107,195.00 
         

Other #                   172.00   145.00                1,348.71   2,239.49 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,347,953.46       3,209,851.87       26,166,799.63       25,136,206.06  

         
State Share 22%           736,549.76          706,167.41         5,756,695.92         5,529,965.33  

         
Local Share 3%           100,438.60            96,295.56            785,003.99            754,086.18  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%              66,959.07            64,197.04            523,335.99            502,724.12  

         
Casino Share 73%        2,444,006.03       2,343,191.87       19,101,763.73       18,349,430.42  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 
EGM 3,263,813$             10,870,155$               11,915,355$                3,075,920$                          29,125,243$               
Table Games 404,193                  1,543,748                   1,295,088                    271,861                               3,514,889                   
Other # 146                          137                              221                               172                                       676                              

Total 3,668,151$            12,414,039$              13,210,664$               3,347,953$                         32,640,808$              

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
2010 20,663,987$          -$                                 -$                                  -$                                          20,663,987$               
2011 40,055,280             -                                   -                                     -                                            40,055,280                 
2012 43,886,501             98,855,928                 54,622,687                  -                                            197,365,116               
2013 43,353,504             192,187,166               124,993,721                -                                            360,534,391               
2014 39,906,275             181,079,650               132,036,392                -                                            353,022,317               
2015 40,513,186             181,754,051               142,759,065                -                                            365,026,302               
2016 38,937,088             181,600,677               143,833,330                -                                            364,371,095               
2017 40,222,932             178,105,968               144,582,037                8,206,260                            371,117,197               
2018 41,186,638             182,084,527               148,770,984                32,465,853                          404,508,001               
2019 41,589,906             184,157,835               150,790,865                34,489,213                          411,027,819               
2020 32,971,510             150,355,262               122,114,403                28,620,752                          334,061,926               
2021 43,690,403             172,711,043               124,388,370                33,857,278                          374,647,093               
2022 49,581,344             162,352,371               149,127,943                39,911,158                          400,972,817               
2023 48,228,287             161,224,699               156,512,547                41,140,188                          407,105,721               
2024 47,257,227             159,760,427               162,065,438                38,890,699                          407,973,791               
2025 30,337,636             104,778,085               109,758,637                26,166,800                          271,041,159               

Total Since Opening 642,381,704$       2,291,007,690$        1,866,356,418$          283,748,201$                    5,083,494,013$        

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 6,855,868               23,051,179                 24,146,900                  5,756,696                            59,810,643                 
Local Governments 910,129                  3,143,343                   3,292,759                    785,004                               8,131,235                   

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 606,753                  2,095,562                   2,195,173                    523,336                               5,420,823                   
Casino Manager 21,964,887             76,488,002                 80,123,805                  19,101,764                          197,678,458               

Total 30,337,636            104,778,085              109,758,637               26,166,800                         271,041,159              

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 
State of Kansas 140,763,828          504,150,370               410,598,412                62,424,604                          1,117,937,213           
Local Governments 19,271,451             68,730,231                 55,990,693                  8,512,446                            152,504,820               

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 12,847,634             45,820,154                 37,327,128                  5,674,964                            101,669,880               
Casino Manager 466,562,756          1,672,306,936           1,362,440,185             207,136,187                       3,708,446,064           

Total 639,445,669          2,291,007,690           1,866,356,418            283,748,201                       5,080,557,978           

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

February 2025 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending February 31, 2025

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2025

Fund Distribution Since Opening

























 

 

      

              
 

807

2258

467

192

507

6

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Sports Wagering
Exclusions

Facility Wagering
Exclusions

Universal
Wagering
Exclusions

Total Number of Exclusions 

Active Exclusions Completed Exclusions

0%

17%

46%

25%

7%

3% 1%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

0-17 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

Age of  SWEP

32

127

182

114

352

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

<1 year 1 year 2 years 5 years Life

Active Sports Wagering 
Exclusion Durations

(Figures do not include completed exclusions) 388

68
105

46

91

296

5
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

SWE Enrollment by Platform*

18 15
21

13
23

11

22
12 16

10
15 16

25

51
57

5255

42

68

36 33
27 27

18

42
35

61
52

60

37

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

SPORTS WAGERING EXCLUSION ENROLLMENT BY MONTH

2022

2023

2024

2025

Voluntary Exclusion Report 
January 2010 – February 2025 

 
 
 



 
  

 
 

 
                   

      

 

 
 

 
03.05.2025 

62.8%
37.2%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

67.8%

32.2%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.4% 0.7%

24.4%

14.8%

44.2%

3.8%
11.8%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.5%

21.3%

27.7% 26.2%

15.1%

6.1%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

15
20

26 26
22 22 20

24
21 22 23 23

19 17 17

0 0

14 13
17

14

21

10 11
16

11
16

8

19 18
15

11

18
21

10 9
12

24
21

9 11 11 13

20
24

30

7 6

14 16

26

15 15

7

18 18 18
13

10
1312 12

20 18
14

20 19
14 12 14 13

18

10

19

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 –February 2025 

Voluntary Exclusions = 3,238 
Violation Incidents = 473 (424 individuals) 

 

African Am.
6.5%

Asian/P.I.
15.4%

Caucasian
65.6%

Lat/His
7.7%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.5%

Ethnicity



All Departments
DeptID All
All Funds Beg. Balance 5,548,212       Beg. Balance 268,188           Beg. Balance 72,212             Beg. Balance 130,509           

Revenue 4,939,153       Revenue 247,346           Revenue 32,722             Revenue 305,299           
Expenses 5,720,676       Expenses 242,998           Expenses 5,496               Expenses 114,018           
End Balance 4,766,689       End Balance 272,536           End Balance 99,438             End Balance 321,791           

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2024 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2025 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
February 
FY2024 

ACTUALS

February 
FY2025 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE

YTD FY2025 
BUDGET

YTD FY2025 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 4,578,991 5,279,692 700,701 15% 563,168 607,839 44,671 8% 6,285,059 5,279,692 -1,005,366 -16%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% -471,379 0 471,379 -100%
Net Salaries and Wages 4,578,991 5,279,692 700,701 15% 563,168 607,839 44,671 8% 5,813,679 5,279,692 -533,987 -9%

52000 Communication 43,517 19,574 -23,943 -55% 5,293 2,344 -2,950 -56% 76,800 19,574 -57,226 -75%
52100 Freight and Express 762 2,081 1,319 173% 185 91 -94 -51% 867 2,081 1,215 140%
52200 Printing and Advertising 745 1,109 364 49% 25 26 1 3% 967 1,109 142 15%
52300 Rents 209,318 200,343 -8,975 -4% 1,996 323 -1,673 -84% 187,433 200,343 12,909 7%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 11,863 20,559 8,696 73% 1,899 364 -1,535 -81% 37,139 20,559 -16,580 -45%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 48,734 36,208 -12,526 -26% 5,763 4,874 -888 -15% 167,923 36,208 -131,715 -78%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 30,376 32,674 2,298 8% 2,192 1,400 -792 -36% 0 32,674 32,674 0%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees-Other Services 219,121 281,550 62,429 28% 22,821 30,382 7,562 33% 344,627 281,550 -63,076 -18%
52700 Fee-Professional Services 12,702 4,328 -8,374 -66% 1,173 711 -462 -39% 288,700 4,328 -284,372 -99%
52900 Other Contractual Services 4,032 15,893 11,861 294% 0 755 755 0% 14,695 15,893 1,198 8%
Subtotal Contractual Services 581,169 614,319 33,149 6% 41,346 41,271 -75 0% 1,119,150 614,319 -504,831 -45%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 3,020 962 -2,058 -68% 14 0 -14 -100% 0 962 962 0%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 608 1,778 1,169 192% 314 881 567 180% 2,867 1,778 -1,089 -38%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 7,720 11,745 4,025 52% 720 1,962 1,242 173% 25,970 11,745 -14,225 -55%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 1,916 406 -1,510 -79% 63 170 107 169% 39,907 406 -39,501 -99%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 18,336 11,955 -6,381 -35% 5,270 1,175 -4,095 -78% 70,703 11,955 -58,749 -83%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 15,881 20,222 4,341 27% 264 3,038 2,774 1051% 4,133 20,222 16,089 389%
Subtotal Commodities 47,481 47,067 -414 -1% 6,646 7,226 580 9% 143,580 47,067 -96,513 -67%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 76,342 142,110 65,767 86% 8,596 936 -7,659 -89% 140,200 142,110 1,910 1%

Grand Total 5,283,984 6,083,188 799,204 15% 619,756 657,273 37,517 6% 7,216,609 6,083,188 -1,133,421 -16%

Cash Fund Balances as of February 28, 2025
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




	A.1 2025-3-14 Agenda
	C.1 Draft Meeting Minutes - February 14, 2025 
	D.1.a GLI Approved March 14, 2025 KRGC Meeting
	GLI Approved - March 2025

	D.1.b GLI Revoked  March 14, 2025 KRGC Meeting
	GLI Revoked - March 2025

	D.1.c BMM Approved  March 14, 2025 KRGC Meeting
	BMM Approved - March 2025

	D.1.d BMM Revoked  March 14, 2025 KRGC Meeting
	BMM Revoked - March 2025

	D.2.a Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 03_14_2025 Boot Hill Casino
	D.2.b Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 03_14_2025 Hollywood
	D.2.c Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 03_14_2025 Kansas Crossing
	E.1.a BH KRGC REPORT 02.2025
	E.1.b BH - February 2025 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a KSTR KRGC Monthly Meeting 3-25
	E.2.b KS- February 2025 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 031425
	E.3.b HW - February 2025 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.KCC March Submission for KRGC 2025
	E.4.b KC - February 2025 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.6 Aggregated Casino Financials - February 2025 Revenue
	G.1 Executed SPO 2024-2002
	G.2.a Budget Stamped EIS
	I.1.a Voluntary Exclusion Report 03.25
	I.1.b VEP Data Chart-Ending Feb 2025
	Y. Dept by Budget Unit FEBFY25
	Z. March Calendar



